

# CARINA FOURIE – CV

*Program on Ethics, Department of Philosophy, University of Washington*

*Savery Hall, Room 361, Box 353350, Seattle, WA 98195-3350*

 +1 206 543 6440

*fourie@uw.edu*

## CURRENT POSITION

I am the Benjamin Rabinowitz Chair in Medical Ethics in the Program on Ethics, Department of Philosophy, University of Washington (UW) in Seattle. I am also an Adjunct Assistant Professor in the Department of Bioethics and Humanities. My research and teaching include work in Population and Public Health Ethics, Clinical Ethics, Applied Ethics, and Social and Political Philosophy. I am particularly interested in inequality and social injustice, and how they relate to health, healthcare and medicine. I have published on topics such as the impact of oppression on emotions and health; inequality in global health partnerships; gender bias in epidemiological research; two-tiered health care; and moral distress in nursing. In the academic year 2020-21, I will be teaching: Feminisms (PHIL 406), Medical Ethics (PHIL 242), Public Health Ethics (PHIL 441), and a graduate seminar (PHIL 510).

## EDUCATION

- 2007 PhD in Philosophy (University College London); Thesis title: Justice and the Duties of Social Equality.
- 2001 MA in Philosophy (University of Johannesburg)
- 1999 BA Honors in Philosophy (University of Johannesburg)
- 1998 BA in Psychology, Philosophy and English (University of Johannesburg)

## RECENT GRANTS, AWARDS AND ACADEMIC HONORS

2020: Awarded a DAAD (German Academic Exchange Service) Visiting Professorship at the Munich Center for Ethics, Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München (LMU Munich, Germany): *Unable to take up the professorship for family reasons.*

2019: Royalty Research Fund Scholar Award, University of Washington.

2015-Current: Endowed Chair: Benjamin Rabinowitz Endowment in Medical Ethics, University of Washington.

2015: Swiss National Science Foundation (SNSF) and University Research Priority Program in Ethics (URPP in Ethics, University of Zurich) funding for a workshop on 'Respect, Recognition and Equality'.

2015-4: Swiss National Science Foundation (SNSF) funding for a two-year research project on equality and health justice.

I have been a Visiting Scholar at the Philosophy Department of the University of Michigan, and at the Munich Center for Ethics of the Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München (LMU Munich, Germany).

## PUBLICATIONS IN PHILOSOPHY AND BIOETHICS

All publications are peer-reviewed *unless* they are marked with an asterisk\*.

### 1. JOURNAL PAPERS

Fourie, C. 2019. Gender, Status and the Steepness of the Social Gradients in Health. *International Journal for Feminist Approaches to Bioethics*, 12 (1): 137-156.

Fourie, C. 2018. Discrimination, Emotions and Health Inequities. *Les Ateliers de l'éthique/The Ethics Forum*. 13 (3): 123-149.

Fourie, C. 2018. The Trouble with Inequalities in Global Health Partnerships: An Ethical Assessment. *Medicine Anthropology Theory* 5, no. 2: doi.org/10.17157/mat.5.2.525 [Open access online].

Fourie, C. 2017. Who Is Experiencing What Kind of Moral Distress? Distinctions for Moving from a Narrow to a Broad Definition of Moral Distress. *AMA Journal of Ethics* 19, no. 6: 578.

\*Fourie, C. 2016. The Ethical Significance of Moral Distress: Inequality and Nurses' Constraint-Distress. *American Journal of Bioethics* 16, 23-25.

Fourie, C. 2015. Moral Distress and Moral Conflict in Clinical Ethics. *Bioethics*. (2):91-7.

Wild, V. et al [second author of multi-author paper]. 2015. Assessing the Impact of DRGs on Patient Care and Professional Practice in Switzerland (IDoC): A Potential Model for Monitoring and Evaluating Healthcare Reform. *Swiss Medical Weekly*; 145: w14034.

Fourie, C. Biller-Andorno, N. and Wild, V. 2014. Systematically Evaluating the Impact of Diagnosis-Related Groups (DRGs) on Health Care Delivery: A Matrix of Ethical Implications. *Health Policy*. 115(2-3):157-64.

\*Fourie, C. 2013. Comment on Walton: The Basic Structure Objection and the Institutions of a Property-Owning Democracy. *Analyse & Kritik* 35: 187-192.

Fourie, C. 2012. What is Social Equality? Status Equality as a Strongly Egalitarian Ideal. *Res Publica* 18 (2), 107-126.

### 2. CONTRIBUTIONS TO EDITED VOLUMES

Fourie, C. Accepted for publication. How Being Better Off Is Bad for You: Implications for Distributive Theories, Relational Egalitarianism and an Egalitarian Ethos. In Stoljar, N. and Voigt, K. (ed.) *Routledge Handbook on Relational Equality and Autonomy*.

Fourie, C. 2017. Wrongful Private Discrimination and the Egalitarian Ethos. In K. Lippert-Rasmussen's (ed.) *Routledge Handbook of the Ethics of Discrimination*. Routledge, 421-432.

Fourie, C. 2017. Sufficiency of Capabilities, Social Equality and Two-Tiered Health Care Systems. In C. Fourie & A. Rid (ed.) *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA, 185-204.

Fourie, C. 2017. The Sufficiency View: A Primer. In C. Fourie & A. Rid (ed.) *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA 11-29.

\*Fourie, C and Wild, V. 2016. [Public Accountability and Swiss Health Care Reform']. In Rauprich, O. (ed.) *[Ethical Decision-Making in Biomedicine: From Conflict to Solutions]*. Akademie für Ethik in der Medizin (AEM). Titles translated from the German, 379-396.

\*Fourie, C. 2015. To Praise and to Scorn: The Problem of Inequalities of Esteem for Social Egalitarianism. In C. Fourie et al. (ed.) *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA, 87-106.

\*Fourie, C., Schuppert, F. and I. Wallimann-Helmer. 2015. The Nature and Distinctiveness of Social Equality. In C. Fourie et al. (ed.) *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA, 1-17.

\*Fourie, C. 2012. What Do Theories of Social Justice Have to Say about Health Care Rationing? In den Exter, A. and Buijsen, M. (ed.) *Rationing Health Care: Hard Choices and Unavoidable Trade-offs*. Antwerpen: Maklu Press, 65-86.

---

### 3. BOOKS & MONOGRAPHS

Fourie, C and A. Rid (eds.). 2017. *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA.

\*Fourie, C., Schuppert, F. and I. Wallimann-Helmer (eds.). 2015. *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA.

---

### 4. BOOK REVIEWS

Fourie, C. 2019. 'Why Does Inequality Matter?', by T.M. Scanlon', *Mind*, Volume 128, Issue 512, October 2019, Pages 1397-1408.

Fourie, C. 2016. 'Inequality: What Can Be Done?' by Anthony B. Atkinson.' *Economics and Philosophy* 32 (1), 366-73.

\*Fourie, C. 2016. 'Reassessing Egalitarianism.' *Australasian Journal of Philosophy*, DOI: 10.1080/00048402.2015.1130732.

\*Fourie, C. 2013. 'Health Justice: An Argument from the Capabilities Approach'. *Medicine, Health Care and Philosophy* 16 (2), 318-9.

\*Fourie, C. 2012. 'Responsibility and Distributive Justice'. *Philosophy in Review* 32 (22), 111-3.

\*Fourie, C. 2004. 'The Many Faces of Evil: Review' in *Philosophy Today*, 18 (47), 4-5.

---

### 5. WORKS IN PROGRESS

(Blogpost; being drafted) Implications of COVID-19's Gender and Sex Inequalities: The Significance of Social Justice for Public Health.

(Paper; Being drafted) Disabilities, Medical Education and the Social Determinants of Health.

(Paper; Being drafted) Oppression, Agency and the Mitigation of Ill Health.

---

## PUBLICATIONS IN OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

\*Fourie, C. et al, 2010. *Fatigue Risk Management Systems: A Review of the Literature*. RSSR 110. London: Department for Transport.

\*Fourie, C. et al. 2010. *Interviews with Operators, Regulators and Researchers with Experience of Implementing Fatigue Risk Management Systems*. RSSR 120. London: Department for Transport.

## PRESENTATIONS, PANELS & SYMPOSIA FROM 2016-2020

2019-2020:

Chair & Organizer: Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposium in Medical Ethics on 'Emotion & Empathy', Virtual (September 2020).

Speaker: 'Oppression, Agency & the Mitigation of Ill-Health' World Congress of Bioethics, Virtual (June 2020).

Speaker, Chair & Organizer: Panel on Structural Injustice, Health & Disabilities, Virtual (June 2020).

Chair & Organizer (with a colleague from the School of Public Health): Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposium in Medical Ethics on Race, Health & Justice, University of Washington (November 2019).

I was on maternity leave in 2019, and thus turned down invitations to speak (in Denmark and in Montreal), and due to COVID-19 in 2020 a number of scheduled presentations were cancelled or postponed.

2018:

Invited Speaker: 'Discrimination, Emotions and Health Inequities', Department of Philosophy, University of Victoria (November).

Invited Speaker (with co-author): 'Disabilities, Medical Education and the Social Determinants of Health', the Philosophy of Education Society of North America (October).

Reviewer & Moderator: American Society of Bioethics Annual Conference, Anaheim (October).

Chair & Organizer: Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposium in Medical Ethics on 'Life Support: The Role of Family, Friends and Community in Health and Health Care', University of Washington (April).

2017:

Invited Commentator: Workshop on Political Equality, Department of Philosophy, New York University (November).

Speaker: 'Gender, Status and the Steepness of the Social Gradients in Health', European Association of Centres of Medical Ethics (EACME) Annual Conference, Barcelona (September).

Speaker: 'Wrongful Private Discrimination and the Egalitarian Ethos', European Society for Analytic Philosophy's biannual conference, Munich (August).

Chair & Organizer (with colleagues from the School of Public Health & Sociology): Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposium in Medical Ethics on Race, Health & Justice, University of Washington (March).

Invited speaker: 'Gender, Status and the Steepness of the Social Gradients in Health', American Philosophical Association, Eastern Division's Annual Conference, Baltimore (January).

Chair & Organizer: Panel on Sufficiency and Health, American Philosophical Association, Eastern Division's Annual Conference, Baltimore (January).

2016:

Speaker, Chair & Organizer: Panel on *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Justice and Health*, Congress of the International Association of Bioethics, Edinburgh (June).

Speaker, Chair & Organizer: Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposium in Medical Ethics on 'The Sickness of Society: What Kind of Inequality Matters for Health', University of Washington (March).

## RESEARCH AND ACADEMIC EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

09/2015-Present: Benjamin Rabinowitz Chair in Medical Ethics, Program on Ethics, Department of Philosophy, University of Washington (Full-Time).

01/2010–08/2015: Postdoctoral Fellow and Scientific Co-ordinator, Philosophy Department; Institute of Biomedical Ethics, University of Zurich (Full-time).

10/2006–12/2009: Senior Researcher, Clockwork Research, London (Full-time).

09/2005–08/2006: Lecturer, Humanities Department, Tower Hamlets College, London (Part-time while studying).

09/2004–06/2005: Research Assistant, Philosophy Department, London School of Economics and Political Science (Part-time while studying).

01/2004–03/2005: Tutor, Philosophy Department, University College London (Part-time while studying).

06/1999–12/1999: Lecturer, Philosophy Department, University of Johannesburg (Part-time while studying).

02/1996–12/1998: Teaching Assistant, Philosophy Department, University of Johannesburg (Part-time while studying).

## TEACHING EXPERIENCE

I have taught undergraduate and graduate students from a range of fields including Philosophy, Public Health and Medicine. The courses I have designed and taught are primarily in Bioethics (including medical ethics and public health ethics), Political and Social Philosophy, and Applied Ethics. I have designed and taught courses at universities in Germany, the Netherlands, South Africa, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the USA. I am happy to make my teaching portfolio available for further information.

## SERVICE FROM 2015-2020

I co-founded (2016) and continue to manage *The Health and Inequality Network - THINK* - which aims to provide opportunities for discussion and collaboration for members of the University of Washington and the WA community interested in health and inequity.

I am an active member of the Program on Ethics at the Department of Philosophy (2015-2020). This includes helping the director, Stephen Gardiner to organize a workshop on Planetary Ethics (2018), presenting a paper at the workshop, 'Ethics & Policy: 200 Days into the Trump Administration' (2017), and serving on the Program's committee.

For the Department of Philosophy, I have served on the committees for graduate placement (five years), graduate admissions (twice); teaching technologies (three years); and climate (diversity) (four years). I have also served on a job search committee (2019). I served as a judge for the High School Ethics Bowl that our department helps to run along with the Law School (four years).

I have planned, organized and chaired five Benjamin Rabinowitz Symposia in Medical Ethics (2016-2020). For details of these symposia please see the 'Presentations, Panels and Symposia' section.

I have or currently am serving on the dissertation committees of six Philosophy PhD candidates. I have or currently am serving as the Graduate Student Representative for students from Anthropology, Public Health, and Political Science. I also mentor two graduate students at our department.

I am an Adjunct Assistant Professor in the Department of Bioethics and Humanities (2016-2020).

I have presented a number of guest lectures and invited talks at the University of Washington. This includes giving a “Ethics Grand Rounds” talk on Moral Distress at the School of Medicine (2016), and a guest lecture for GEN ST 297 G/H Exploring Majors in the Social Sciences (2018). I also participated in a Simpson Center for the Humanities-sponsored interdisciplinary research group on Global Health Partnerships. I was an active member of the advisory board for the Global Health Minor (three years). Furthermore, I participated in a Feminist Writing Group (2018).

I am a Member of the advisory board for the Washington Institute for the Study of Inequality and Race (WISIR) (since 2016) and a Member of the Munich Center for Ethics at the LMU Munich (since 2014).

I am a general member of the American Philosophical Association; the American Society for Bioethics and Humanities; and the International Association for Bioethics.

As service to the profession, for example, I review papers for a range of philosophy journals including *Ethics*, *Bioethics*, *Public Health Ethics*, *Social Theory and Practice*, *Res Publica*, *Journal of Applied Philosophy*, and *Ethical Theory and Moral Practice*, and book proposals and books for Oxford University Press, Cambridge University Press and Rowman and Littlefield. I have acted as a reviewer and moderator for a number of conferences, e.g. the American Society of Bioethics and Humanities’ annual conference (2017; 2018).